

SAN DIEGO MESA COLLEGE ACADEMIC SENATE

7250 MESA COLLEGE DRIVE, SAN DIEGO, CA 92111-4998 (619) 388-2733 FAX (619) 388-2929

APPROVED: 03/10/08

MESA ACADEMIC SENATE February 25, 2008 – 2:15 P.M. - 4:00 P.M. – H117/118 <u>Minutes</u>

PRESENT:

Bill Brothers, Kris Clark, Jan Clymer, Mike Crivello, Adrienne Aeria Dines, Margaret Fickess, Paula Gustin, Martina Hesser, Madeleine Hinkes, Bill Hoefer, Gary Holton, Jill Jansen, Geoffery Johnson, Leroy Johnson, Matt Kofler, Ken Kuniyuki, Georgia Laris, Nina R. Lopez, Joe Mac McKenzie, Jonathan McLeod, Alessandra Moctezuma, Val Ontell, Francisca Rascón, Michael Reese, Cynthia Rico-Bravo, Joe Safdie, Marilynn Schenk, Shannon Shi, Erica Specht, George Svoboda, Paul Sykes, Terrie Teegarden, Michelle Tucker, Farshid Zand.

ABSENT:

Mark Abajian, Chris Althaus (excused), Becca Arnold, Dwight Furrow, Bob Gordon, Holly Hodnick, Laleh Howard, Carl Luna, Andrea Luoma, Andrea Marx, Ron Ryno (proxy to Hinkes), Mike Sanchez, Manuel Velez, Duane Wesley, Karen Williams (excused), Bonnie ZoBell (excused).

I. CALL TO ORDER was made by President Terrie Teegarden at 2:19 P.M.

II. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

- A. <u>Associated Student Body (ASB) Representative</u>. Nina R. Lopez spoke about obtaining a list of certified justices at Mesa. Rico-Bravo asked that once Lopez has the list to forward the information to her too. Two events are in the planning stages for "Canyon Day" and "Cesar Chavez Day".
- B. Public. With Senate elections coming up, candidates who are running for Academic Senate were invited to speak at the Senate meeting by President Teegarden. Those running for office include Rob Fender (President-Elect), Marichu Magana (Treasurer), Michael Reese (incumbent-Treasurer), Erica Specht (incumbent-Delegate to State Academic Senate), Cynthia Rico-Bravo (current vice president-Delegate to State Academic Senate), and Gary Holton (Delegate to State Academic Senate). Each candidate spoke briefly on his background, experience, and the reason(s) for running as president-elect, treasurer, or delegate to the State Academic Senate.

III. GUESTS

- Barbara Kavalier, Vice President, Student Services (VPSS). An introduction
 was made by President Teegarden to welcome Vice President Kavalier for being a
 guest to the Senate meeting. Vice President Kavalier spoke about her
 background, educational accomplishments and colleges that she had served at to
 the senators. She was most appreciative to President Teegarden for inviting her
 to the Senate meeting.
- IV. APPROVAL OF SENATE MINUTES OF February 11, 2008 as amended. M/S/U Sykes/Ontell Unanimous

V. REPORTS

- **A.** <u>Treasurer</u>. Michael Reese reported there is a balance of \$610.33 in the checking account and \$2,661.50 in the savings account.
- **B.** <u>Academic Affairs</u> Bill Brothers announced he plans to later discuss the Mission Statement, under Old Business on today's agenda.
- C. <u>Professional Development Committee.</u> Bill Brothers reported on behalf of Bonnie ZoBell that the deadline to turn in sabbatical applications is <u>Friday</u>, <u>February 29th.</u>
- D. <u>Committee of Chairs</u>. Georgia Laris reported on the following items:
 - The Chair for the Committee of Chairs' election is Chris Sullivan.
 - April 30th Deans and Chairs meeting.
 - There is a concern with delays in the hiring process.
 - A concern exists with workload (student learning outcomes (SLO's), program review and accreditation reports). A subcommittee plans to meet for further discussion on these matters.
 - Continue to have involvement with ongoing construction plans at Mesa.
- **E.** <u>Vice-President</u>. Cynthia Rico-Bravo reported on the following:
 - She printed out and circulated descriptions of the committees who are having difficulties in recruiting new members.
 - > Research Committee is seeking three faculty members;
 - Academic Affairs Committee is seeking two faculty members;
 - ➤ Foundation Board of Directors is seeking one faculty member and two public directors.

President Teegarden urged all senators to share Rico-Bravo's information with new faculty on the wonderful opportunity to serve on those committees.

- F. <u>Curriculum Review Chair</u> Paula Gustin reported on the following:
 - February 22nd was the deadline to submit information for the catalog.
 - She was happy to report that a lot of curriculum is being integrated. As a follow up, Gustin informed the Senate that email reminders will be sent out to the department chairs.
 - Program changes are being revised to resemble the pages in the catalog. In the past, the program side did not match with what was listed in the course catalog. Gustin helped identify the departments who had put changes through CurricUNET.
- **G.** Student Learning Outcomes and Assessment Coordinator (SLOAC) Joe Safdie reported on the following:
 - The SLO subcommittee will be meeting on March 7th from 10:30 A.M. until 12:00 P.M.
 - On February 22nd, the SLO Research subcommittee met to finalize their membership.
 - The lists of members serving on the SLO subcommittee were read to the senators. When a question was asked if adjuncts can serve on committees, Teegarden clarified for that adjuncts can serve on any committee looking for members.
 - A list of Frequently-asked-questions (FAQ's) will be sent out electronically by Safdie.

- He mentioned the deadline for SLO's is the end of this semester. After Safdie indicated what he was looking for, McLeod clarified that Safdie is seeking SLO's for disciplines (not department or school). Some concerns were raised about SLO's, but Safdie mentioned that Accreditation will be visiting Mesa in 2010 and the SLO's must be in place. President Teegarden encouraged all disciplines to utilize Safdie and invite him to assist and provide input on areas they may need help with in their SLO's. Although he is aware of everyone's reluctance to develop SLO's, Safdie reiterated that it's less work than what everyone seems to think it is. He explained that 3-5 SLO's be written per discipline; however, disciplines need only assess one SLO in the next academic year.
- H. Basic Skills Coordinator Tracey Walker. President Teegarden reported that Tracey Walker will not be able to report to the Senate on Basic Skills due to a scheduling conflict. It was hoped that Walker could report on a regular basis to the Senate because President Teegarden believes that many students who come to community colleges require help with basic skills. Schenk, who serves as the Reading Coordinator on the Basic Skills Committee, agreed with President Teegarden's comment and added embedded tutors have been hired to help in English classes for supplemental instruction. Schenk said early reports are very favorable which show that the tutoring helps students who struggle with these issues. It was also mentioned that Math workshops are currently being run by Professor William Peters and held in the Math and Science Center.
- I. <u>President</u> Terrie Teegarden reported on the following:

1. President's Cabinet

- After she met with President Rita Cepeda and Vice President Elizabeth Armstrong, President Teegarden was notified about a delay in filling faculty positions. She mentioned that the original Hiring Committee met to review the hiring list and reassess it. President Teegarden doesn't believe the list will go away. Specht had mentioned that past-president Carl Luna wrote a document on a 5-year timeline. After hearing this, Laris added that the chairs be included in further hiring discussions.
- On February 27th, the District is having a drill of the emergency broadcast system. Expect students to receive calls on their cell phones at around noon.

2. District Governance

- California Community Colleges Board of Governors (CCCBG) has developed an Energy and Sustainability Policy which the District Sustainability Committee is reviewing to determine if there are any changes needed prior to bringing the District Policy to the state.
- Enrollment is up despite the changes made to the reporting which caused the numbers to go down.
- There will be no cuts of current faculty or staff or their benefits.
- Given a decrease in funding for next year and an increase in expenses, the budget gap will be about \$5.1 million next year. The plan includes splitting 200-300 FTES from summer to maintain a base and an additional 700 plus to take advantage of the maximum growth and to increase the average class size from 2003 (level was 35 students per class). Also, there will be delays in filling vacant positions.

3. Other.

 ABSO announced that food prices and deliver prices have gone up which will result in an increase in the cost of food. The size of hamburger patties will be reduced to help keep costs down. They experienced a loss of \$100,000 due to the College closure during the wild fires. • The Bookstore should end the year flat. There has been a large increase in used book sales. They are also experiencing added costs due to changes in books needed by instructors which that had to be returned. To help lower these costs, instructors are urged to <u>please</u> only mark required on those books you are actually going to require. Another thing that affects the bookstore is when classes are cancelled.

VI. OLD BUSINESS

A. Draft of "New A.A. Degree (Liberal Arts and Sciences with Area of Emphasis) requirements" and "The Course Selection Process" (P.Gustin). Gustin gave an explanation of why the new A.A. degree was developed. Previously, the Transfer Studies degree was not specific enough. As a result, City and Mesa worked together to develop this new degree by reviewing majors from 9 universities, and then selecting majors from our 4 top transfer schools (CSUSM, SDSU, UCLA, UCSD). She also described the course selection process which includes a key component that the course is a prep for the major and that the course articulates to a college. It is important for the new A.A. degree requirements to be in place and approved in March 2008 by the Board. The goal is to have the new A.A. degree listed in the catalog for next year.

Juliette Parker, Articulation Officer, was available to answer additional questions that senators had during for discussion on the list. She recommended working with faculty to add classes that may have been missed and should be included on the list. She indicated Mesa offers more classes than City and that general education (G.E.) classes could not be put on the list because they don't articulate. Gustin had advised students should meet with a counselor to discuss the degree in more detail. More discussions followed, with the Senate approving the draft of the new A.A. degree and course selection process.

M/S/U Sykes/Brothers

B. Mission Statement (B. Brothers). According to Brothers, he presented the Mission Statement to President's Cabinet after it had been approved by the Senate and Academic Affairs; however, a few people on the Cabinet wanted some changes to the Vision and Values sections. A modified version of the handout was distributed to the senators by Brothers. A sentence on civility and multiculturalism was included. Laris, Chair of Committee of Chairs, Lina Heil, Public Information Officer, and Jonathan Fohrman, Dean of Arts and Languages, met with Brothers to help revise the Mission Statement.

Ontell moved to suspend the rules in order to vote on the changes now, and it was seconded by Mackenzie.

M/S/U Holton/Ontell

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. Resolution of 08.2.1 – Faculty Evaluations should not be linked with Student Learning Outcomes (SLO's) – (E. Specht). Specht announced that her original resolution was revised with input from McLeod. She read to the Senate the changes that were made, but a handout was not provided.

M/S/U Specht/McLeod

B. <u>Low enrollment</u>. A handout was developed by Miramar's Senate addressing low enrollment at their campus. President Teegarden was asked to share the information with our senators. Several senators provided feedback to Teegarden and discussed strategies to avoid having low enrollment classes cancelled. Laris expressed frustration when cuts are made after the schedule is set.

VIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS.

- Ontell announced that Library Walk-in workshops will be on Mondays and Wednesdays starting March 5th in LRC 432 from1:00 P.M 2:00 P.M.
- Moctezuma extended an invitation for everyone to see the San Diego Mesa College Faculty exhibit in the Art Gallery, which will be up until March 5th. The next art exhibit will be featuring David Bacon (San Francisco artist).
- **IX. ADJOURNMENT** was made by President Teegarden at 3:51 P.M.

Next meeting will be on March 10, 2008, in Room H117/118 at 2:15 P.M.

Respectfully submitted by Madeleine Hinkes, Senate Secretary, and Ruth San Filippo, Recording Secretary.